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LICENSEE:
The inspection was an examination of the activities conducted under your license as they relate to radiation safety and to compliance with the Nuclear
Regulatory Commission (NRC) rules and regulations and the conditions of your license. The inspection consisted of selective examinations of
proc~res and representative records, interviews with personnel, and observations by the inspector. The inspection findings are as follows:
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[ ] 3.

Based on the inspection findings, no violations were identified.
Previous violation(s) closed.
The violations(s), specifically described to you by the inspector as non-cited violations, are not being cited because they were self-identified,
non-repetitive, and corrective action was or is being taken, and the remaining criteria in the NRC Enforcement Policy, to exercise
discretion. were satisfied.
Non-cited vlolation(s) were discussed Involving the following requirement(s):

[ ] 4.

During this inspection, certain of your activities, as described below and/or attached, were in violation of NRC requirements and are being
cited in accordance with NRC Enforcement Policy. This form is a NOTICE OF VIOLATION, which may be subject to posting in accordance
with 10 CFR 19.11.
(Violations and Corrective Actions)

Statement of Corrective Actions
I hereby state that, within 30 days, the actions described by me to the Inspector wilt be taken to correct the violations identified. This statement of
corrective actions is made in accordance with the requirements of 10 CFR 2.201 (corrective steps already taken, corrective steps which will be taken,
date when full compliance will be achieved). I understand that no further written response to NRC will be required, unless specifically requested.
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Temporary Job Site Inspection
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PROGRAM SCOPE

Jefferson Proving Ground (JPG) is an approximately 55,000-acre installation near Madison, IN that was used for a
variety of munitions and penetrators. Between 1983 and 1994 JPG was authorized to use depleted Uranium (DU) in the
form of penetrator rounds. The Army fired approximately 100,000 kg of tank penetrator rounds containing DU with
approximately 70,000 kg remaining in the DU impact area. The DU impact area is 2,000 acres and also contains
unexploded ordinance (UXO), which still is the primary safety concern on the site.
The entire perimeter of JPG is surrounded by an 8-foot chain link fence which is posted as "Government Property - No
Trespassing". The site is divided up into multiple areas with some having public access for various uses. Any public
access is restricted to a lottery system and is monitored at all times. The area south of the firing line is roughly 2,000
acres that houses the administrative staff and members of the US Fish and Wildlife Service. This line is also fenced and
gated and is the point of entry to the northern portion of the site for public use.
The Army has an agreement with an outside contractor (Leidos, formally Science Applications International Corp. SAIC) to provide radiological services with site characterization to support ongoing activities. Currently a license
amendment is under review by the NRC to maintain a possession only license instead of decommissioning the site due to
the hazardous nature of the DU being comingled with the UXO.
Performance Observations
The inspector toured the site which included observations of the overall condition of the site perimeter fence as well as
the interior signage of the DU impact area. The site perimeter fence is currently undergoing replacement and is roughly
half complete at the time of inspection. The portions of the fence that were yet to be replaced were in working order and
any damage has been repaired by the Indiana Air National Guard (lANG). All road barricades within the site were in
good working order.
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All the areas that were accessible by road, mostly the eastern and western side of the DU impact area, were inspected
for proper signage entering the area. The signs were place roughly I 00-200 yards apart and were legible. Some signs on
the east side of the impact area have become faded, but still clearly legible, and have been requested to be replaced
prior to the next inspection.
Approximately 44 existing ground water wells are used to monitor ground water for the presence ofDU and are located
at various location around the DU impact area. The inspector visually checked 14 of the wells to ensure they were
properly capped and locked. No reports by the Vendor indicate an increased presence of radioactive material or change
in water samples.
Survey instruments used by the Army were reviewed for proper calibration and operation. The inspector also reviewed,
the Radiation Safety Plan, training content, and training attendance since 2014 as required.
It should also be noted that currently the Army does not have any full time staff on site; however, there is a current job

posting for a Facilities Management Specialist (GS-12) that will oversee the management of JPG and should be filled
prior to next inspection.
No violations were identified during this inspection.
The previous violations from inspection report no. 04008838/2013001 are considered closed.
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